1 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Table of Contents

CommISSIONETS' AZEIAA .........ciiiiiiiciie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt 2
Gravel truck traveling through SIphOn area .................cccoooiiiiiii e 4
S T U (ST B o TG - RO SN 5
Flood plain and the Landfill ... et 6
P&D Furniture DISCUSSION ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiti ettt ettt et ettt e ettt et e et e et e eae et e s e eae e e e enas 10
OPENGOV CONITACE .......iiiiiiitie ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e e st e et e et eeaseesseeeabe e sseesbeessseesbeeesseesseesnaeenbeensees 14
Event Center office fUINITUIE ...............ocoiiiiiiii ettt ettt ae e enea 18
CMS Communications Invoice - YDC BUIlding ............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiicce et 19
PersONNEl DISCUSSION .........ccuiiuiiiiiiii ittt ettt ettt et et e et e et e e et et e et e e teeete e e aaeeeee e 20
Resolution 2025-52 Denying Petition to Validate North Beehive Road EXt ................cccooooiiiiiiiiiiieee 21
Resolution 2025-53 Accepting the Construction Bond for the Westfield Estates Subdivision Phase 6 .....................
................................................................................................................................................................................ 23



2 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ —
MEETING

Commissioners' Agenda

The Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) is comprised of the three elected County
Commissioners: Ernie Moser (District 1), Jeff Hough (District 2, Chair), and Ken Bullock (District
3). The BOCC generally meets twice weekly: Tuesdays & Thursdays at 9:00 a.m. Unless otherwise
noted, meetings are generally held in the Commissioner's Chambers at 624 E Center, Room 212,
Pocatello, Idaho. During these public meetings, the BOCC may approve contracts, expend funds,
hear testimony, make decisions on land use cases, and take care of other County matters.

Times are subject to change within 15 minutes of the stated time.

Tuesday, August 19, 2025

9:00 AM Business Meeting (action items)

Agenda:

Indigent Business may require an Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code §74-206(1)(d) to
consider records exempt from public disclosure (action item)

Jerry Hunt — requesting to discuss a solution for the gravel trucks traveling through residential areas
in the Siphon area (potential action item)

Daniel Kendall, Chief Building Officer, providing a monthly facilities update (potential action item)
Tristan Bourquin, Assistant Planning Director, requesting to discuss (1) flood plain and the Landfill,
(2) furniture discussion, and (3) signature on Open Gov contract (requested 10 minutes) (potential
action item)

Shanda Crystal, Chief Procurement Officer, requesting to discuss (1) disposal of Event Center office
furniture and (2) payment of CMS Communications invoice for the YDC building (potential action

item)




3 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Jennifer Clark, Treasurer, requesting an Executive Session under Idaho Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b)
regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of Executive Session (requested 15

minutes) (potential action item)

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (action items):
Resolution 2025-52 Denying Petition to Validate North Beehive Road Ext
Resolution 2025-53 Accepting the Construction Bond for the Waestfield Estates Subdivision Phase 6

CONSENT and CLAIMS AGENDA (action items):

" Board of Ambulance District: Invoices and Commissioner Report

Board of Commissioners: invoices, Commissioners Reports, and Credit Applications

Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under ldaho
Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b} regarding personnel with potential action following adjourmnment of
Executive Session

Manual Checks

Alcohol Licenses and Catering Permits

Certificate of Residency Approval

Technology Forms

Minutes: Approval of Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025, and Certification of Said Minutes




4 BOARD OF B ) Y COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Bannock County COMMISSIONERS

G b Conter, Pocatello, 11

Phione: ¢ Jax:

Ervie Moser — Jerr Hoven KN Burrock
Commi 1| o ST { ot "
Ist fJf'1fffuf ..’HJ District brd Iistrict

CONCERNS/ISSUES REQUEST FORM

Once you have filled out this form, you can email the completed form to
commission@bannockcounty.us; fax it to 208-236-7363; or send it by mail to: Bannock
County Commissioners, 624 E. Center St., Room 101, Pocatello, ID 83201. Please be sure to
include any supporting documents. If you have any questions, feel free to call 208-236-7210.

Name: Phone/Email:

Jerry Hunt 801-541-8672

Concern/issue/question:

Residents here in the Rio Vista - Siphon area have real concerns with 50-ton
gravel trucks going through this residential area. With the two gravel/asphalt
operations (Pocatello Ready Mix - south side of Siphon & Knife River - west side
of Laughran) coming on line, trucks will again be going through the neighborhood.

Suggested solution?

The simple solution is to send all gravel trucks west on Siphon Rd, over the The
simple solution is to send all gravel trucks west on Siphon Rd, over the Portneuf
River & onto Tank Farm Rd which presently is the road gravel & tanker trucks
have quick asses to the |-86. This would eliminate the need for trucks going east
on Siphon and then turning south on Rio Vista. This route out Tank Farm Rd is
even a shorter route. What is stopping this from happening is that the bridge over
the Portneuf river has been derated from 50-ton to now 10 tons. This bridge that
it is owned by the Tribe needs to be replaced or upgraded to 50-ton bridge.

: - s i A ;
K’x el P‘;JL\-. weSte« ) ‘\‘-\G—\ B R - | \‘;,'h?\h (NN e o v
\

b

Please include any supporting documents with your Concerns/Issues Request Form.

Commission Office Only:

Date: &l ] 'L' 5 Department:




5 BOARD OF B, 3 Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Bannock County COMMISSIONERS

624 k. Center, Pocatello, 1D 83201
Phone: (208) 256-7210 * Fax: (208) 232-7363

Ernie Moser — Jurr Houch

Commissioner Commissioner

Ist District Ind District

Ken BurrLock
Commissioner

3rd District

Business Meeting Agenda Request Form

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on Tuesday at 9:15 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the

Bannoack County Courthouse, Room 212; 624 F Center Pocatello, Idaho or as noticed 48 hours prior to the meeting

ot https://bannockcounty.us/commissioners/. The Commissioners also hold meetings throughout the week as coordinated with the Commissioners’

staff. Agenda times are subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in public

meetings should contact the Commissioners’ Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days before the meeting.

Requestor Name:

Dan Kendall

Department:
Buildings and Grounds

Requestor Email:
danielk@bannockcounty.gov

Item(s) to be considered:

Monthly buildings and grounds update (potential action items)

Date of meeting being requested: Time requested:
08/19/2025 10 Minutes

Does the request involve a contract, agreement, external funding, or award acceptance?

No
Contract/Agreement Begin Date: Contract/Agreement End Date:

List of additional attendees:



6 BOARD OF Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Banvock County COMMISSIONERS

G2 E. Center, Pocatello, ID 83201

Phone: (208) 236-7210 ® Fax: (208) 232-73063

ErniE Moser  Jerr[lovcn  Ken BuLLock
Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner

Ist District 2nd District 3rd District

Business Meeting Agenda Request Form

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on Tuesday at 9:15 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the
Bannock County Courthouse, Room 212; 624 E Center Pocatelio, Idaho or as noticed 48 hours prior to the meeting

ot https://bannockcounty.us/commissioners/. The Commissioners also hold meetings throughaut the week as coardinated with the Commissioners’

staff. Agenda times are subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in public

meetings should contact the Commissioners’ Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days befare the meeting.

Requestor Name:

Commissioner Hough

Department:
Commission

Requestor Email:
commission@bannockcounty.gov

Item(s) to be considered:

1.) Discuss flood plain and the Landfill 2.) Furniture discussion 5-) i?wiugmf? ‘Q‘VW‘ Crsv

Date of meeting being requested: Time requested:
08/19/2025 10 Minutes

Does the request involve a contract, agreement, external funding, or award acceptance?
No

Contract/Agreement Begin Date: Contract/Agreement End Date:

List of additional attendees:
Dillon Evans, Hal Jensen, Tristan Bourquin



BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Bannock County Landfill - Floodplain Compliance Report

Prepared for: Bannock County Board of Commissioners
Prepated by: Tristan Bourquin, Certified Floodplain Manager
Date: August 12, 2025

1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of this tepott is to provide the Board of Commissioners with an overview of chemical
storage conditions within the floodplain at the Bannock County Landfill, summarize engineering
studies conducted on the landfill’s retention ponds in recent years, and outline steps necessaty to
ensure compliance with all applicable floodplain regulations.

2. Background

The Bannock County Landfill contains areas located within the designated floodplain (See attached
map). Cutrent operations include the storage of chemicals, which may pose envitonmental and
regulatoty concetns when stored within the floodplain. Additionally, the landfill contains several
retention ponds designed to manage stormwater and leachate, which are critical for both
environmental protection and regulatory compliance, Due to the construction of stormwater ponds,
there are additional engineering and flood studies that may need to be conducted to be in
compliance with floodplain regulations.

3. Chemical Storage in the Floodplain

s Current Storage Practices:
o Certain chemicals used for landfill operations (e.g., fuel, treatment agents,
maintenance chemicals) are cutrently stored within the mapped floodplain area.
» Regulatory Concerns:
o Floodplain regulations generally prohibit ot requite special containment for
hazardous materials to prevent release during flood events.
o Dxisting storage arrangements may require modifications, or relocation, to ensure
compliance,
» Next Steps:
o Conduct a detailed inventoty of all chemicals stored within the floodplain area.
o Assess containment systems for. flood resilience.
o Develop a compliance plan, which may include relocation or flood-proofing
measures.

4. Engineering Studies on Retention Ponds

Over the past several years, the County has commissioned engineering reviews to assess the
retention ponds’ structural integrity, capacity, and compliance with environmental standards,

s Study Information:
o May 13, 2025 — Fort Hall Mine Landfill Stormwater Pond Capacity Assessment
+ Findings:



BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025




National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette _ Legend

112°22'14"W 42°47'29"N SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V. A99

SPECIAL FLOOD With BFE or Depth Zone AE, A0, AH, VE, AR
HAZARD AREAS Regulatory Floodway

T07S R35E S21

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with dralnage
areas of less than one square mile zone X

Future Conditlons 1% Annual
- Chance Flood Hazard zone x
1 Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to

OTHER AREAS OF | Levee, See Notes. Zone X
FLOOD HAZARD | ' Area with Flood Risk due to Levee zono b

no SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard zonw x

[ Effective LOMRs

OTHER AREAS Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard zonc D

GENERAL | === == Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer
STRUCTURES (1111111 Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sectlons with 1% Annual Chance
Water Surface Elevation
Coastal Transect
Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)
Limit of Study
e Jurisdiction Boundary
Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Digital Data Available
No Digital Data Avallable
MAP PANELS Unmapped

ﬁ The pin displayed on the map is an approximate
point selected by the user and does not represent
an authaoritative property locatlon.

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below.
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap
accuracy standards

The flood hazard information Is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 8/13/2025 at 10:05 PM and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective Information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.

This map image Is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
— — FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
A @ OOO L2726 42073 unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
) regulatory purposes.

Basemap Imagery Source: USGS National Map 2023




10

BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Nesting Chairs without armrests for Council meeting attendees

https://www.uline.com/BL 2249/Mesh-Nesting-Chairs

MESH NESTING CHAIRS

MESH NESTING CHAIRS

Set up in seconds. For meetings, seminars and
temporary classrooms.

= Powder-coated steel frame.

» Padded mesh upholstered seat and contoured
screen back.

+ 2 1/2" thick seat flips up to nest for compact storage.
» 2" swivel casters.

N
Seat Color.  Black Gray
SOLD N MULTIPLES OF 2

MODEL SEATDIMENSIONS | cAPACITY | SEAT | wr. | PRICEPER CHARR ADDTO
NO. DESCRIFHON WxD ws | HEIGHT | ws) | 3y CART
H-4929 Mesh 26 $185 $175 Specify Calor
18x19° 275 19"
H-6230 | Mesh w/ Armrests 29 195 185 | Spacity Color

20 @ $175 = $3500

Conference Room Chairs for meetings

SHIPS ASSEMBLED VIA MOTOR FREIGHT

https://www.uline.com/BL 684/Leather-Conference-Room-Chair

O.miore Imoges & Video

LEATHER CONFERENCE ROOM CHAIR

LEATHER CONFERENCE ROOM CHAIR

Sit in comfort during long meetings.

» High-back style in bonded leather with plush foam.
» Plush 5" thick foam seat and back cushion.
« Standard tilt with adjustable tension.

« Fixed, padded ammrests.

MODEL | eeopiom o | SEAT DIMENSIONS | cAPACITY | ADJUSTABLE | wr | PRICEEACH ADD TO

NO. WxD ss) HEIGHT | uss) 1 } as CART
H-2753 Leather 21x22" 275 18-22" 41 | $155ea.anyqly. |1 [ ADD]|
EASY ASSEMBLY. SHIPS VIA UPS.

16 @ $155 = $2480

Tuesday, August 19, 2025



11 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Tables for development meetings and Council meetings

https://www.uline.com/BL 2250/Economy-Training-Tables

ECONOMY TRAINING TABLES
Lightweight and poriable for college classrooms and
multi-use areas.

+ Blow-molded plasfic fop. 29 %" heighl.

« Top flips up 90° for compact storage.

= 2 grommels for cable management.

« Powdercoated steel frame.

+ 2"locking swivel casters.

« Tables nest when not in use.

« Mesh Nesting Chairs available.

O.eniarga & Viceo

ECONOMY TRAINING TABLES

MODEL SHAPE DIMENSIONS | CAPACITY | WT. PRICE EACH ADDTO
NO. LxW u=sg am) 1 i CART
H-6932 60 x 24" 48 235 225 1
Rectangle 250 ¥ § L
H-6933 72%24" 51 270 20 (1]

SHIPS UNASSEMBLED VIA MOTOR FREIGHT

4 @ $270 = $1080

Dry Erase Board

https://www.uline.com/BL 2324/Glass-Dry-Erase-Boards

GLASS DRY ERASE BOARDS = Back  Blue  Green
H-90234 3x2 17 $155 $145 | [1__ [ apD]
H-7180 Magnetic 4x3 a2 280 260 | [__J[ap0]
H-7181 White 6x4 79 545 515 | [ |[ADD]
H-7805 8x4 102 710 670 | [ |
H-7806* Magnetic 4% 3 42 300 280 | Specify Color
H-7807* Colored 6x 4 79 595 565 | Specify Color
§-227834 Expo® Assorted Neon Markers 13 12 ]

SHIPS VIA MOTOR FREIGHT

4 SHIPS VIA UPS

1 @ 5545 0r 5710



12 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Rolling TV

& Perihar Droasa Faiers b Boyems Covmvns

Porhagn Puinge Propead &

Jasmine g .
Dream ‘V‘#N
- L5

T,

1 @ $10,000 - $15,000

Owl Camera for Council Meetings

Owl Labs Meeting Owl 3 - 360° 1080p HD

G

Tracking, 18-Foot Mic Pickup - Certified for

Meet - Plug & Play Setup
Visit the Owl Labs Store
4.5 %k ddfrwv {567) | Search this page

Overall Pick

500+ bought in past month

#1,049%
Or $87.42 /mo (12 mo). Select from 3 plans

~prime Tomorrow
FREE Returns v

free account and save up to 8% today.

Visa. Earn up to $500 each year. Find out how

May be available at a lower price from othe
Prime shipping.
Bundles with this item

Click to see full view - T

1@ $1049

Conference Room Camera, Al-Driven Speaker-

Microsoft Teams - Works with Zoom, Google

With Amazon Business, you would have saved $152.81 in the last year. Create o
Get a $50 Gift Card for each friend who is approved for Prime Visa or Amazon

cllers, potentially without free

Tuesday, August 19, 2025



13 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Another Web Camera Option

ITEM AVAILABILITY PRICE QUANTITY ITEM TOTAL
Logitech MX Brio Ultra HD 4K In Stock $199.99 1 = $199.99 il
Collaboration and Streaming Get it Thu, Aug 14 if ordered Advertised Price .
Wik 1080p at6 within 1 hrs 30 mins.
MFG Part: 960-001550
CDW Part: 7842129
UNSPSC: 45121520
~ Top Recommendations
1@ $200
Computer for Rolling TV and Plotter
Lenovo ThinkCentreneo 50  In Stock $782.03 2 - SSed0s [
Gen 4 - tiny Core i5 13420H Get it Thu, Aug 14 if ordered Advertised Price EET T
2.1GHz-16GB - within 1 hrs 30 mins.
MFG Part: 121 NOOOBUS
CDW Part: 7473151
UNSPSC: 43211507
~ Top Recommendations
2 @ 5782 = $1564
Laptop for Council Meetings
Lenovo ThinkPad E16 Gen 1 - In Stock §1:619:60 e $869.81 @]
16" - Intel Core i5-1335U - 16 Get it Thu, Aug 14 if ordered $869.81

1 @ $869

GERAM-512G

MFG Part: 21JN0O040US
CDW Part: 7520172
UNSPSC: 43211503

within 1 hrs 30 mins.

Advertised Price

TOTAL: ~ $26,252



14 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OpenGov?Y

Order Form Number: Q-07046

Created On: 07/23/2025
Order Form Expiration:  10/14/2025
Subscription Start Date:  10/15/2025
Subscription End Date: 10/14/2028

Prepared By:
Email:

Contract Term:

Tuesday, August 19, 2025

OpenGov Inc.
660 3rd Street, Suite 100
San Francisco, CA 94107

United States

Jack Rowley

jrowley@opengov.com

36 Months

Customer Information:

Customer: County of Bannock, ID
Bill To/Ship To: 624 East Center
Pocatello, Idaho
83201

United States

Contact Name:
Email:
Phone:

Alisse Foster

alissef@bannockcounty.gov

Order Details:

Upfront
Net 30 Days

Billing Frequency:

Payment Terms:

SOFTWARE SERVICES:

Product Name Start Date End Date Annual Fee
Advanced Reporting Integration 10/15/2025 10/14/2026 $2,546.71
Esri;rcGl;[-ntegration | B 10/15/2025 V— 10/14/2026 $1.273.97
] Permi[iilng and Licensing - 1 Service Area 10/15/2025 10/14/2026 $16,132.39
Advanced Reporting Integration 10/15/2026 - 10/14/2027 $2,674.05
S— S . — B ]
Esri ArcGIS Integration 10/15/2026 10/14/2027 $1,337.66
Permitting and Licensing - 1 Service Area 10/15/2026 10/14/2027 $16,939.01
Advanced Reporting [ntegration 10:’152??7 10/14/2028 $2,807.?5uu4#




15 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Esri ArcGIS Integration 1071572027 } 10/14/2028 | $51,404.55
o e S _E -——
Permitting and Licensing - | Service Area 10/15/2027 'i 10/14/2028 $17,785.96
Customer Billing/Service Periods:
Period: Total:
10/15/2025 $19,953.07
10/15/2026 $20,950.72
10/15/2027 $21,998.26

Order Form Legal Terms:
This Order Form incorporates the OpenGov Master Services Agreement ("MSA™) attached here or available at
https://opengov.com/terms-of-service/master-services-agreement/.

The "Agreement” between OpenGov and the entity identified above ("Customer") consists of the Order Form, MSA, and,
if Professional Services are purchased, the Statement of Work.

Unless otherwise specified above, fees for the Software Services and Professional Services shall be due and payable, in
advance, 30 days from receipt of the invoice.

By signing this Agreement, Customer acknowledges that it has reviewed, and agrees to be legally bound by the
Agreemenl. Each party's acceptance of this Agreement is conditional upon the other’s acceptance of the Agreement to the
exclusion of all other terms

County of Bannock, ID: OpenGov, Inc.
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




16 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

OpenGov Inc.
p e n OV 660 3rd Street, Suite 100

San Francisco, CA 94107
United States

Order Form Number: Q-07046 Prepared By: Jack Rowley
Created On: 07/15/2025 Email: jrowley(@opengov.com
Order Form Expiration:  10/14/2025 Contract Term: 12 Months

Subscription Start Date:  10/15/2025
Subscription End Date: 10/14/2026

Customer Information:

Customer: County of Bannack, 1D Contact Name:;  Alisse Foster

Bill To/Ship To: 624 East Center Email: alissef@bannockcounty.gov
Pocatello, Idaho Phone:
83201

United States

Order Details:
Billing Frequency: Upfront
Payment Terms: Net 30 Days

SOFTWARE SERVICES:

Product Name Start Date End Date Annual Fee

Advanced Reporting [ntegration 10/15/2025 10/14/2026 $2,546.71

Esri ArcGIS Integration 10/15/2025 10/14/2026 $1,273.97
Permitting and Licensing - 1 Service Area 10/15/2025 10/14/2026 $16,132.39

Customer Billing/Service Periods:
Period: Total:
10/15/2025 $19,953.07

Order Form Legal Terms:
This Order Form incorporates the OpenGov Master Services Agreement ("MSA") attached here or available at
https://opengov.com/terms-of-service/master-services-agreement/,

The "Agreement" between OpenGov and the entity identified above ("Customer") consists of the Order Form, MSA, and,
if Professional Services are purchased, the Statement of Work.



17 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Unless otherwise specified above, fees for the Software Services and Professional Services shall be due and payable, in
advance, 30 days from receipt of the invoice,

By signing this Agreement, Customer acknowledges that it has reviewed, and agrees to be legally bound by the
Agreement, Each party’s acceptance of this Agreement is conditional upon the other’s acceptance of the Agreement to the
exclusion of all other terms

County of Bannock, 1D: OpenGaov, Inc,
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:

Tide: Title;

Date; Date: _




18 BOARD OF B Y COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Ervie Mosern  Jurr Hoven  Ken BuLrock
(.omiss | oo EatiL £ ommnssiom
Ist Distriet Qnd District Srd Distrect

Bansock County COMMISSIONERS
Gap b Center, Pocatella, 11 84401

Phone: ¢ o & Fax:(

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on
Tuesday at 9:00 AM in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the Bannock County Courthouse, 624
E. Center, Room 212, Pocatello, Idaho, or as noticed 48 hours prior  to
the meeting at https://www.bannockcounty.us/commissioners/.  Agenda times are
subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special
meetings should contact the Commissioner’s Office at 208-236-7210, three to five working days
before the meeting.

E-mail this completed form and any supporting documents to agendarequest@bannockcounty.us by

NOON on the Thursday prior to the scheduled meeting.

Name/Department:

Shanda Crystal/Chief Procurement Officer

Item to be considered/background:
Request to discuss 1) disposal of Event Center office furniture and 2) payment of CMS
Communications invoice for YDC building .

How much time will be needed? Meeeting date requested:

5 minutes 8/19/25

Does this item involve a contract, agreement, external funding application or award
acceptance?

YES D NO

Have all supporting documents been included with this form?

YES NO D

List of attendees:

Please include any supporting documents with your Agenda Session Request Form.

R R e L A T e T N R T S L R T A T =Y

Commissioner Office Only:

Date: Time:

R TR T T N R B O S T R N TR PR A I TS R




19 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

_ Invoice REMIT PAYMENT TO:
r 18095 Edison Avenue CMS Communications, Inc
& Chesterfield, MO 63005
636-530-1320 ACH GRECE
W EMSCiCom Routing #: 081006162 18095 Edison Avenue
' ' Acct#: 121179 Chesterfield, MO 63005
3 communications ; e-mail remittance advice to: accounting@cmsc.com
Order Number: 1802826
2503342-IN Order Date 8/11/2025
8/14/2025 Salesperson: JWF
Customer Number: 01-BANID0OQ
Sold To: Ship To:
BANNOCK COUNTY COURT HOUSE BANNOCK COUNTY COURT HOUSE
624 EAST CENTER STREET 624 EAST CENTER STREET
ROOM: 205 ROOM: 205
POCATELLO, ID 83201 ATTN: DORIAN HITCHCOCK
POCATELLO, ID 83201
Customer P.O. Ship VIA Terms
PO# YDC-Switchi GROUND NET 10 DAYS
Item Code Unit Ordered Shipped Back Ordered Price Amount
C9300-48U-A-REF Cisco Catalyst 9300 - Network
EACH 1.00 1.00 0.00 1,690.00 1,690.00
PWR-C1-1100WAC-P-REF Cisco - Power supply - hot-plu
EACH 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
FAN-T2-REF Cisco Type 2 - Fan unit - Refu
EACH 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C9300-NM-8X-REF Cisco Catalyst 9300 Series Net
EACH 1.00 1.00 0.00 300.00 300.00
C9200-NM-4G-REF Cisco Catalyst 9200 Series Net
EACH 2.00 2.00 0.00 250.00 500.00
C9200-STACK-KIT-REF Cisco - Network stacking modul
EACH 3.00 3.00 0.00 340.00 1,020.00
STACK-T4-50CM-REF Cisco - Stacking cable - 1.6 f
EACH 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tracking Numbers: 1Z26698210392462088; 126698210391976098;

” . Net Invoice: 3,510.00
PREFER TO RECEIVE E-MAILED INVOICES ONLY? SEND YOUR REQUEST TQ accounting@cmsc.com Less Discount: 0.00

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! Freight: 72.74
WWW.CmMSsC.COom 0.00

3,5682.74



Bannock County COMMISSIONERS

Phonie: ¢

(.4

20 . COMMISSIONERS

Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Coomnmssi Coontnnpissienet

Ist District 2nd Pistrict

Poicatello:. T1

i ¢ Fax;

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
The Board of Bannock County Commissioners business meetings are generally held on
Tuesday at 9:00 AM in the Commissioners’ Chambers in the Bannock County Courthouse, 624
E. Center, Room 212, Pocatello, Idaho, or as noticed 48 hours prior  fo
the _meeting _at ___ htips://'www.bannockcounty.us/commissioners/.  Agenda times are

subject to change within 15 minutes of scheduled time. Any person(s) needing special
meetings should contact the Commissioner’s Olffice at 208-236-7210, three to five working days
before the meeting. :

E-mail this completed form and any supporting documents to agendarequesi@bannockcounty.us by
NOON on the Thursday prior to the scheduled meeting.

Name/Department:

Jennifer Clark / Treasurer's Office

Item to be considered/background:

Requesting Executive Session regarding personnel IC 74-206 (1) (a) & (b)
Also requesting to be the last agenda item of the day.

How much time will be needed? Meeeting date requested:

10-20 minutes 8/19/25

Does this item involve a contract, agreement, external funding application or award
acceptance?

YES |:| NO

Have all supporting documents been included with this form?

YES |:| NO

List of attendees:
Jennifer Clark and Misty Katsilometes

Please include any supporting documents with your Agenda Session Request Form.

Ennie Moser  Jury Houcn  Ken BurLock
LT

}] ERIAL
Svdd Distriet

Date: 8]!‘1 ,75 Time:

Commissioner Office Only:




21 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

In the Matter of DENYING ) R.S. No. 2025-52
PETITION TO VALIDATE ) August 19, 2025
NORTH BEEHIVE ROAD EXT )

RESOLUTION

WHERFEAS, a public hearing was held on August 12, 2025, at the hour of 11 a.m, in the
chambers of the Bannock County Commissioners to consider the petition to validate North Beehive Road
Extension. '

WHEREAS, the Board, having considered all evidence presented and public comments at the
hearing, hereby makes the following findings and conclusions:

APPLICABLE LAW

1, Bannock County Commissioners are authorized by Idaho Code Title 40, Chapter 2 to validate a
highway or public right-of-way as public or declare it not to be public.

2. Notification to the public, adjacent landowners, and operators of underground facilities must be
made according to Idaho Code §40-203.

3 Upon completion of the proceedings, the commissioners shall determine whether validation of the
highway or public right-of-way is in the public interest and shall enter an order validating the
highway or public right-of-way as public or declaring it not to be public. Idaho Code §40-
203A03).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On May 23, 2025, Applicant Eric Olsen filed, on behalf of Torgesen Murdock Investments, LLC,
an application to validate “Historic Extension North Beehive Road” pursuant to Idaho Code §40-
203A(1)(a), in that doubt exists as to the legal establishment or evidence of establishment of the
public right-of-way.

2. The location of Beehive Road is within and under the jurisdiction of Bannock County, Idaho.

3. Notification of the public hearing to adjoining property owners and underground utilities was
made via certified mail, and the public hearing notice was published on July 5, July 19, and
Aug9, 2025.

4, The public hearing was held on August 12, 2025,

5. There is question of the existence of a public right of way from the end of the paved Beehive
Road to a parcel belonging to Torgesen Murdock Investments, L1.C, and running through a parcel
belonging to Slagle Joint Revocable Trust and a parcel belonging to Ben Lyon.



22 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

R.S. 2025-52

Page 2

6. The specific section that is subject to the validation petition has not been maintained by the Public
Works Department or with public funds.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Validation of Beehive Road beyond the pavement is not in the public inferest, pursuant to Idaho
Code §40-203A(3).

ORDER

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, based on the foregoing Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law, pursuant to Idaho Code Title 40, Chapter 2, that the above mentioned road is
declared not to be a public right-of-way and the petition is denied.

** Appeal Rights**

Pursuant to Idaho Code § 40-203A(4), any resident or property holder within a county or highway
district system, including the state of Idaho or any of its subdivisions, or any agency of the federal
povernment, may appeal to the district court of the county in which the highway or public right-of-way is
located pursuant to section 40-208, Idaho Code.

BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Jeff Hough, Chair

Ernie Moser, Member

Ken Bullock, Member

ATTEST:

Jason C. Dixon, Clerk



23 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

In the Matter of ACCEPTING THE ) R.S. 2025-33
CONSTRUCTION BOND FOR THE ) August 19, 2025
WESTFIELD ESTATES SUBDIVISION PHASE 6)

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Rio Vista Land, LLC, has proposed a subdivision of 13 residential dwelling
lots with a proposed name of Westfield Estates Subdivision Phase 6; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance 1997-4, Section 304.C,
a developer may post a bond with the County sufficient to complete unfinished improvements in
order to record the approved plat before improvements are completed; and

WHEREAS, Dannis Adamson, Member, submitted a signed Agreement to Complete
Work with a performance bond via a Letter of Credit in the amount of $2,000, an amount of
120% of the estimated improvements for monuments, and a date of October 31, 2025, to have
the work completed; and

WHEREAS, Dannis Adamson, Member, submitted a signed Agreement to Complete
Work with a performance bond via a Letter of Credit in the amount of $271,472, an amount of
110% of the estimated improvements, and a date of October 31, 2025, to have the work
completed; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Bannock County Commissioners reviewed said proposal,
agreement, and final plat on August 12, 2025.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the agreements and bonds are accepted

for Westfield Estates Subdivision Phase 0, thereby allowing the approved plat to be recorded,
and that the bonds be released pursuant to Ordinance 1997-4, Section 304.C.

BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Jeff Hough, Chair

Ernie Moser, Member

Ken Bullock, Member

Attest:

Jason C. Dixon, Clerk



24 BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
MINUTES CERTIFICATION

We, the Board of Bannock County Commissioners, hereby certify approval of the minutes of the Bannock
County Commissioners’ meetings inclusive of the date(s) of August 12, 2023, as approved during the
meeting of August 19, 2025,

BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Jeff Hough, Chair

Ernie Moser, Member

Ken Bullock, Member

ATTEST:

Jason C. Dixon, Clerk



25

BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF
BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

| Tuesday, August 12, 2025

| Ernie Moser, Jeff Hough, and KenBuleek
| Jason C. Dixon

- | Deputy Clerk Nancy Allen, Comptroller Kristi Klauser, Attorney Scott
| Pearson, and HR Director Matthew Phillips

Regular Business Meeting (action items)
Agenda:
o Indigent Business may require an Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code §74-206(1)(d) to
consider records exempt from public disclosure (action item)

e Tony Manu, Sheriff, regardmg a request to reallocate funds to finish flooring on stairs and DART
room of the new Tactical Training Center (requested 5 minutes) (action item)

e Scott Crowther, Event Center and Wellness Complex, requesting (1) signature on a contract with
a fee waiver for the Youth Celebration Music Event, and (2) approval of a rental agreement with
PVSC United Soccer (requested 10 minutes) (action item)

e Alisse Foster, Planning and Development seeking review for approval on a construction bond,
monument bond, and final plat for Westfield Estates Division 6 (requested 10 minutes) (action
_item)
Kristi Klauser, Auditing, regardmg (1) a s1gnature on an opioid settlement ref #CL-1732786

Purdue Direct, and (2) to discuss approval to purchase YDC/EC building appliances, safe, and tv
that is not to exceed $8,000.00 (requested 5 minutes) (action item)

Shanda Crystal, Procurement, requesting to discuss (1) lessons learned from past projects and how
to improve processes moving forward, and (2) a procurement update (requested 15 minutes)
(action em) i et
SIGNATURE ONLY (action 1tems)
Commissioners’ Proceedings — July 2025

CLAIMS AND CONSENT AGENDA (action items):
¢ Board of Ambulance District: Invoices and Commissioner Report
e Board of Commissioners: Invoices, Commissioners Reports, and Credit Applications
o Salary Rate Approval Forms/Notice of Separation with Potential Executive Session under Idaho
Code §74-206(1)(a)&(b) regarding personnel with potential action following adjournment of
Executive Session
Payroll Report
Manual Checks
Alcohol Licenses and Catering Permits
Certificate of Residency Approval
Technology Forms
Mileage Reimbursement Requests
Memorandum Authorization for Accounts Payable
Minutes: Approval of Meeting Minutes from August 5 and 7, 2025, and Certification of Said
Minutes

* & & & o ° o 0

DRAFT August 12, 2025, BOCC Minutes



R . BOARD.OF BANNOCK COUNTY. COMMISSIONERS ~ Tuesday, August 19, 2025
9 | 11:00 AM Public Hearing — Beehive Road Validation (action item)

1 9:00 AM Hough called the meeting to order. Community Resources and Advocacy Director Shantal
Laulu presented a cremation application for case number 20250049. Moser moved to approve case
number 20250049. The motion passed.

2 9:01 AM Manu reviewed the SWAT training room project is nearing completion. Flooring for the stairs
and storage room was missed in the project bid. It was requested to reallocate funding from critical
equipment and jail maintenance to complete the project. Moser moved to approve the reallocation to
finish the projects. The motion passed.

3 9:04 AM Natalie Houghton also appeared. Crowther reviewed the request for a youth celebration event in
the amphitheater and for a fee waiver. They help clean and set up chairs in trade for the waiver. The only
hard cost would be for an electrician for the sound system. Hough moved to approve the event and fee
waiver, and that the event pay for the electrician. The motion passed.

9:07 AM Crowther explained a salary form was submitted for a returning employee that is backdated. The
employee has been working. Staff missed completing the form.

9:08 AM President Mary Keller, Financial Administrator Cortney Lew, Secretary Erika Neu, and
Treasurer Kevin Mecarthur appeared representing PVSC. Crowther explained there has been a contract for
the soccer fields for several years. The relationship has been good, but there were complaints from parents
about field conditions that seem to relate to a fee they are charged and that they were told the County
charges the fee and it is passed to them. The fields are used six days per week. The County’s full cost for
field maintenance is $326,950 for one year, and that is reduced down to $12,741 for the PVSC contract.
Previously, Pocatello was paid $12,000 per month for water for the fields. Costs incurred include $15,000
for fertilizer and $8,000 for vole removal. It was learned that the price increased each of the last two years
for players. However, the contract amount has been the same for three years. The fee reduction is to
support and help the youth.

9:12 AM Keller reported the parents were not told the fee increase was due to County fees. Appreciation
was express for what the County does and parents that have been in club for years know that the fields
have improved. Lew addressed the player fee increase and field complaints. Crowther relayed the major
user of the Bannock fields is the soccer club.

9:16 AM Hough mentioned that additional fields were being discussed and questioned how to build a
better partnership. Moser questioned the club’s goals and savings. The club’s goal is to have year-round
soccer and they are working on an indoor facility. Initially, the player fee increase went toward that. The
club’s tournament brought 172 teams to the area, and they work with businesses for discounts. They work
to bring more back to the community.

9:19 AM Discussion ensued on subsidizing budgets, reasonable contract fees, club numbers, benefits to
community, and impact to the facility. The discussion will continue next week.

4  9:24 AM Foster reviewed Westfields Estates Phase 6, which will replat Phase 4. The contractor has
proposed to bond for monuments and part of the construction of the road. Utilities are already in place.
The intent is to advertise the lots in the parade of homes. Hough moved to approve the bond request and
the plat. The motion passed.

5  9:28 AM Klauser reviewed an opioid settlement agreement that Legal has reviewed. Moser moved to sign
the application. The motion passed.
9:29 AM Klauser reviewed the YDC project did not include appliances, a safe, and TV that are estimated
to be less than $8,000. Funding options were reviewed. Moser moved to approve the request, not to
exceed $8,000 for the YDC project from ARPA. The motion passed.

6  9:32 AM Crystal requested the lessons learned discussion be rescheduled for department head attendance.
9:34 AM Crystal gave updates on procurement projects.

DRAFT August 12, 2025, B_OCC Minutes



27

BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025
9:36 AM Moser moved to approved the July 2025 Commissioners’ Proceedings publication. The motion

passed.
9:36 AM Hough moved to approve the claims and consent agenda. The motion passed.

11;00 AM Hough called the meeting to order and reviewed the hearing process and rules, He noted that
several public comments have been received. Public Works Director Kiel Burmester, Assistant Director
Buddy Romriel], and Administrative Services Manager Bobelte Beesley were present.

11:01 AM Burmester reviewed the hearing is held pursuant io Idaho Code Title 40, Chapter 2 for
validation of a road under the reason that doubt exists as to the status of the road, whether public or
private, EchoHawk is applicant. In reviewing the application, staff' looked at the method of creation,
whether it was formally declared by recordings or maps. Beehive Road is not shown on the County roads
map that is reviewed every five years, Other methods of creation include blanket legislative declaration or
public use prior to 2/1/1881, five years of public use or maintenance, common law dedication, the revised
statule of 2477, dedication through platling, or conveyance or condemnation, Stafl found there has been
no maintenance and no public funds have been used on the questioned road. Additionally, staff looked to
the assessor for any documentation or recorded easements, and none were found.

11:04 AM Moser moved to open the public hearing. The motion passed.

11:04 AM Eric Olsen, legal counsel for the applicants seeking validation, indicated the parcels belonged
to the federal government in the late 1800°s, The applicants seek validation of the historic RS2477 right-
of-way that provides access to those parcels, The historic right-of-way is an extension of Beghive Road
and has been recognized in the historical documents since the parcels were initially homesteaded.
Historical maps and surveys were submitted with the application. The requirements of Idaho Code §40-
204A have been met per the RS2477 legislation before it was withdrawn in 1976, The key requirements
that have been met is the road provided access and use prior to its withdrawal from the public domain. It
was right over the subject property of the Slagles who have denied access to Mr. Lyon and the Murdocks.
Per the application and statute, they are entitled to validation of the public right-of-way,

11:07 AM Heather Larsen, Paralegal to Mr, Olsen, conducted an onsite visit with an archeologist and
surveyor. Just vesterday, they were provided access to Slagle property. Waypoints were done and the
location of the Liyon family cabin was located that is on historic documents. Both the surveyor and
archaeologist confirmed that the road as it existed in the 1901 survey, the 1961 survey, and topographical
maps from 1935, 1940°s, 1960°s and ‘66 all represent that the road and cabin are in the same location as
referenced in those documents. The topographical map shows the road as a double line road. The legend
indicates that would be an excavated, improved road. It was similar condition to Buckskin, but it was
access to the cabin. It went along property line, That used to belong to the Girl Scouts and was public
until the 1950°s when it was granted by the government as a public park; public use, It remained in the
status of public use until 2013 when it was privately sold.

11:10 AM Preston Carter, representing the Slagles, objected in that the statute requires the
Commissioners to consider all information related to the application, so two minutes of testimony does
not comply with the statute. Additionally, new evidence was submitted this morning that the Board would
not have had the opportunity to review. That is not consistent with due process, The applicant’s are
claiming a road under RS2477, That only allows creation of public roads prior to property being
withdrawn from the public, This property was withdrawn from the public in 1959, The statutes in effect at
the time governed whether a road was created. Those statutes in 1959 required public maintenance to
create a public road. There is zero evidence of public maintenance. Looking closely at the record
applicant provided, there is some evidence of private maintenance after 1959. They are seeking to
construct a public road over his clients’ property. There is no road on the ground in the photos. The
relevant date is 1959. There was no public maintenance prior to that. Statute 40-204A was passed in 1993,
It does not apply to land that was withdrawn from the public in 1959, That statute only applies to land that
was in the public domain as of the time it was passed which is 1993. All the Commission needs to look at
is if there was public maintenance prior to 1959 The answer is no, therefore, there is no road, There is
more legal details in the submission. In order to validate the road, the Commission also has to make a
finding that validation is in the public interest. Constructing a new road over his clients’ property is not in
the public interest.

11:12 AM Bobette Rowe-Slagle has submitted comments by email. But to reiterate, since 1959, access
has been by permission only by the landowners. The public has never been given arbitrary access.
Residents in the area work together 1o maintain the status of the driveways. As new stewards of the lands
and foot paths, they feel a huge responsibility to continue maintaining the trails to the benefit of

DRAFT August 12, 2025, BOCC Minutes



. BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025
themselves and their neighbors. The environmental impact, if there were a road through the desired

corridor, no matter the prior private use, that corridor that has been pointed out is through a wetland and
adjacent to the south fork of Pocatello Creek. To imagine a roadway through there, let alone a public
roadway, is unimaginable. Knowing the constraints for environmental regulation, it is unimaginable to
consider a road through the drainage, The personal impact and what they risk to lose with the creation of a
public access way through their entire property to access a private property. When the property was
purchased, they went above and beyond fo ensure there were no recorded easements through the property
and that they had an easement to the property.

11:15 AM Chuck Slagle felt it is inappropriate to give two minutes for testimony when his wife’s
submitted comments amount to twelve. If there was more due diligence and go back and look at the facts,
it would be seen that there is no public road. There is a trail, There is no road on the property. It starts as a
marsh, then to a trail next to the stream, back to marsh and over a hill to a more protected trail on the
applicants’ properties. There is no survey that shows a road, just some dotted lines and indication that in
the past something was. It is crazy to say this is where a road would go, but cannot be ¢learly defined.
Public access to a wetland is crazy. Part of reason he purchased the property is the unique drainages and
join the neighborhood fo protect the drainages. Now someone wants to bust a 32-foot road through there
to take a firetruck up to some condo in the future. It doesn’t fit protecting wetlands. The Murdocks and
Lyons are not the victims, They have options. There were five previous owners they could’ve gotten
easements from. They are the victims of applicants taking a lazy approach to this and assuming that they
can show they are a victim, which they are not.

11:18 AM Wendy Deffinger agrees with the discussion on maintenance, In the 13 years she has owned
her property, she has walked back on trails in the area. At the end of the paved Beehive, there’s a short
gravel road, There’s a fence there with a padlock and boulders pushed up around it, That restricted travel
by motorized vehicles. [n the time she has walked back in the area, she has never seen motorized vehicles
or anybody on the trails, There is no road. It is a wet, boggy, marshy area. She does not understand why
Mr. Murdock needs public access through Beehive when he has public, motorized access through the
Blackrock trail system which cuts across the northeast corner of his parcel.

11:19 AM David Fredrickson expressed he is familiar with the property since the late 50°s and it has
always been a private road up until recently when the County took over maintenance up to Ron Dykman’s
property, The rest above that is still private. In the 60’s he traveled to the area and the gate was open and
it was posted, no access without permission by the Silver Sage Girl Scouts. Their caretaker was there and
allowed him fo drive up the so-called road, across what he called corduroy road across the waterway to a
shelter that is there. Beyond that, the tracks petered out. There was a trail, and a creek coming down the
other side, He didn’t dare driver further due to risk of getting stuck in mud with the creek there, He got
permission from the Girl Scouts to take Boy Scouts up there in the early 80°s, In his experience in 65
years, it has never been a public road until the lower part was paved. From the end of the pavement up to
the area has always been private. While the Girl Scouts had it, access was always required by permission.
There was a chain link fence and gate with a pointy top so you couldn’t crawl over it easily. It is a privaie
road and should remain a private road.

11:22 AM Paul Allen concurred and reinforced the statements and observations of the previous speaker.
He has lived in the area since 1983 and has been familiar with the property since 1985. At that time, there
was evidence of a trail and some sort of private access to the girl scout lean-to in the area. There appeared
to be several old logging roads that extend up several of the drainages, probably from the early 20"
century. There is no evidence of maintenance. He supports maintaining the private nature of the
properties. The simple ingress/egress to the properties should be valid, but public access shouldn’t be
necessary.

11:24 AM Don Murdock expressed that a lot of things said here aren’t true. When you go up the Beehive
extension, you go through and there was a left turn in the road, You go up and there’s an exact right turn
in the road to go to the old girl scout camp. That is a nice wide drive up there and he’s has camped up
there. The whole question here is they are denying there ever was access, but why do they go to the
trouble to take a CAT and push gravel over the access and fill it with trees so they can’t get up there. They
drove up o check the road four years ago and gravel had been pushed over the wetlands or whatever they
say. Going up further, there’s a spring that comes down and joins in the Slagle property, a major roadway
cut right into the side of the hill. There’s a logging road above and the major road that goes down to the
little creek that goes into the cabin that the Lyons built. They drove up there and built a cabin and enjoyed
it for years and years. The old maps that show this, you can see the cabin location, and the maps show that
it’s there. That is why it qualifies as a 2477 historic roadway; protected by Congress, these land grants
they got up there back in 1906, to have access. There is no access over the top. You can drive a 4-wheeler

DRAFT August 12, 2025, BOCC Minutes



BOARD OF BANNOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Tuesday, August 19, 2025
up there and come down, but you could never get in to enjoy it. But the real reason 1s, since the road was

blocked four years ago, they haven’t been able to set a foot on that property because you can’t get up
there with the blockage.

11:26 AM Ron Dykman explained he purchased his property in 1999, and bought an easement from Pat
Rowley, who also sold easements to Pyles, which Pyles later sold the property to the Slagles. When he
showed up to look at the property the first time in ‘99, there was a gate at the bottom and a foot trail that
took you in about 500 feet. That is where he built the new road to go in to his house. The road takes a left
and meanders up to the house. At that 500 feet mark, he put it another gate so he could close the first one
when he built, he could close the second one to keep other people from going up in there. That was the
agreement he had with Rowley, to put another barrier to keep people from getting in there. He put the big
rocks in place. That road was nothing but dirt when he purchased it. There’s never been any gravel prior
to him putting it there. He has put in about 40 truckloads of gravel and the Slagles have about 10. He is
the only one that has maintained it since 2001 when he moved in. There have really been no other
vehicles up in there after that. Before that, there was not really any vehicles for at least 15 years because
Rowley owned it for 7 year and he would never let anybody in. The other guy was a fish and game cop
that would never let anybody in and he lived there for 7 years. There is a chain link fence that the girl
scouts did have set up for purposes of no trespassing. The posts with concrete in the ground are still there.
The cabin applicants are talking about is approximately 8 feet by 12 feet and 4-5 feet tall with a door that
that’s off the ground. It’s not a cabin, maybe a hunting cabin. He is totally against validation.

11:28 AM Moser moved to close the public hearing. The motion passed. Discussion ensued on the
proposed road going to private property, rather than public, and whether validation would cause public
maintenance. If the property has always been fenced as permission only, it is private. Moser moved to not
make this a public road. The motion passed.

ACTION/DIRECTION | ASSIGNED TO
Approved cremation assistance for case number 20250049, Indigent
Approved reallocation for tactical training flooring. Sheriff
Approved fee waiver for youth celebration and continue PVSC contract
discussion. Parks and Rec
Approved plat and bond agreement for Westfield Estates — Division 6. Planning/Resolution
Approved opioid settlement participation. Auditing
Approved additional items for YDC project up to $8,000 from ARPA. Auditing/Procurement
Reschedule lessons learned discussion. Procurement
Approved proceedings publication and claims agenda. Clerk
Apprpved open/close public hearing and denied petition for validation of Public Works/Resolution
Beehive Road.

DRAFT August 12, 2025, BOCC Minutes



	Commissioners' Agenda
	Gravel truck traveling through Siphon area
	Facilities Update
	Flood plain and the Landfill
	P&D Furniture Discussion
	OpenGov Contract
	Event Center office furniture
	CMS Communications Invoice - YDC Building
	Personnel Discussion
	Resolution 2025-52 Denying Petition to Validate North Beehive Road Ext
	Resolution 2025-53 Accepting the Construction Bond for the Westfield Estates Subdivision Phase 6
	Minutes: Approval of Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025, and Certification of Said Minutes



